
 

 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

April 8, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

.. 
REGULAR	MEETING	AGENDA

April 8, 2015 
Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM 

1) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________ 
1A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
1B.  Roll Call 
1C.  Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change 
to the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

2) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket motion 
with a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request specific items to be removed 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.   Any  items removed will be considered after the motion to 
approve the Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the 
City staff. 

2A.   Minutes of City Council Meeting of March 11, 2015 
Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of March 11, 2015. 

2B.  Cash Summary Report February 2015 
Recommendation:  Receive and File. 

2C.  Master Agreement for Caltrans State‐Funded Transportation Projects 
Recommendation:    Adopt  Resolution  No.  6‐2015  Authorizing  the  execution  of  a Master  Agreement 
administering  an  Agency‐State  Agreement  for  State‐Funded  Projects,  Agreement  No.  00452S,  and 
Authorizing the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related documents to the Agreement, 
on the City’s behalf. 

2D.  Mosquito and Vector Control Awareness Week 
Recommendation:  Adopt Resolution No. 7‐2015: Recognizing West Nile Virus and Mosquito and Vector 
Control Awareness Week 2015. 

2E.  Award Construction Contract for the Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding, Project No. 14‐01 

  Recommendation:    :    1)  Adopt  Resolution  No.  8‐2015  Authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  a 
Construction  Contract  with  Hudson  Excavation,  Inc.  in  the  amount  of  $189,473.00  and  approve 
Construction  Budget  of  $201,026  as  a  contingency;  2)  Authorize  the  City  Manager  to  enter  into 
reimbursement Agreements with PG&E, Verizon and Wave Communication.   

3) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The  purpose  of  these  reports  is  to  provide  information  to  the  Council  and  public  on  projects,  programs,  and  issues 
discussed at committee meetings and other items of Colfax related information. No decisions will be made on these issues. 
If a member of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other information, the issue will be 
placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 

3A.  Committee Reports and Colfax Informational Items ‐ All Councilmembers 
3B.  City Operations Update – City staff 
3C.  Additional Reports – Agency partners 
4) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public within the subject 
jurisdiction of the City Council that are not listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as possible. 
Comments should not exceed three (3) minutes in length. The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; 
however, if action is required it will be referred to staff. 



 

 

 
Colfax  City  Council  Meetings  are  ADA  compliant.  If  you  need  special  assistance  to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346‐2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

April 8, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2 

5) PUBLIC HEARING______________________________________________________________________ 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC: City Council will take the following actions when considering a matter scheduled for hearing: 

1. Open the public hearing 
2. Presentation by staff 
3. Council comments and questions 
4. Presentation, when applicable, by applicant or appellant
5. Accept public testimony 
6. Council comments and questions 
7. When applicable, applicant or appellant rebuttal period
8. Close public hearing. (No public comment is taken after the hearing is closed.)
9. City Council action 

Public hearings that are continued will be announced. The continued public hearing will be listed on a subsequent Council Meeting Agenda and posting 
of that agenda will serve as notice. 

The City Council encourages the participation of the public. To ensure the expression of all points of view, and to maintain the efficient conduct of the City’s 
business, members of the public who wish to address the Council shall do so in an orderly manner. The audience is asked to refrain from positive or negative 
actions such as yelling, clapping or jeering that may intimidate other members of the public from speaking.  Members of the public wishing to speak may 
request recognition from the presiding officer by raising his or her hand, and stepping to the podium when requested to do so. 

5A.  44 Gearhart Lane Abatement 
  STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mick Cabral, City Attorney 

RECOMMENDATION:    Adopt  Resolution  9‐2015  Confirming  as  Submitted  the  Report  of  Costs  of 
Abatement  for  the  Real  Property  Located  at  44  Gearhart  Lane,  Colfax,  California,  Placer  County 
Assessor’s Parcel Number 006–022–002–000, Authorizing the Abatement Costs to be Levied as a Special 
Assessment against said Property, and Authorizing Recordation of a Special Assessment Lien. 

6) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
6A.  Review of Facade Mural at 38 N Main Street Above Café Luna Restaurant  

STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
  RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt Resolution 10‐2015 approving  the proposed Facade Mural at 38 N Main 

Street above Care Luna Restaurant.  
6B.  Update on General Plan Traffic Requirements 

STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the Staff Report on General Plan Traffic Requirements, Discuss and Direct 
Staff as Appropriate 

6C.  Approval of Lift Station #2 Pump Upgrade 
  STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 11‐2015 Authorizing the City Manager to purchase two new Lift 

Station  Pumps  in  the  amount  of  $16,614  and  have  them  completely  installed  for  an  amount  not  to 
exceed $6,500. 

6D.  Consultant Services Agreement with TLA Engineering & Planning (TLA) for the North Main Bike Route 
Improvement Project 

  STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt Resolution 12‐2015 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a Consultant 

Services Agreement in the amount of $12,900 with TLA Engineering, Inc and Planning for the North Main 
Bike Route Improvement Project. 

6E.  Appoint Representative and Alternate to Placer Sierra Fire Safe Council (PSFSC) 
  STAFF PRESENTATION:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Appoint Mayor Pro Tem Parnham and select alternate for the PSFSC. 
7) ADJOURNMENT________________________________________________________________________ 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 
at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 

 
Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited  to  raising only  those  issues  you or  someone  else  raised  at  a public hearing described  in  this notice/agenda, or  in written  correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 



ITEM 2A
1 of 5



ITEM 2A
2 of 5



ITEM 2A
3 of 5



ITEM 2A
4 of 5



ITEM 2A
5 of 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
   

FOR THE APRIL 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 
PREPARED BY:  Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director 

DATE:  March 11, 2014 
SUBJECT:  City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: February, 2015 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Cash Summary Report: February 2015. 

SUMMARY: 
Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Cash Summary Report: for February 2015. 
 
BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:   
These monthly financial reports include General Fund Unassigned Cash Analysis Graphs and the City of 
Colfax Cash Summary Report (with supporting documentation).  The reports are prepared monthly on a 
cash basis and are reconciled to the General Ledger accounting system, previous reports and bank 
statements.  Detailed budget comparisons are provided as a mid‐year report and also as part of the 
proposed budget process each year. 
 
The purpose of the reports is to provide status of funds and transparency for council and the public of the 
financial transactions of the City. 
 
CONCLUSION:   
The attached reports reflect an overview of the financial transactions of the City of Colfax in February 2015.   
 
Monthly highlights include: 

 The quarterly payment for the Winner property purchase was processed in February. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis Graphs 
a. Cash Analysis – Balance 
b. Expenses by Month 
c. Revenues by Month 

2. Cash Activity Reports – February 2014 
a. Cash Summary 
b. Cash Transaction Report – by individual fund 
c. Check Register Report  
d. Daily Cash Summary Report 

ITEM 2B
1 of 10



ITEM 2B
2 of 10



ITEM 2B
3 of 10



ITEM 2B
4 of 10



ITEM 2B
5 of 10



ITEM 2B
6 of 10



ITEM 2B
7 of 10



ITEM 2B
8 of 10



ITEM 2B
9 of 10



ITEM 2B
10 of 10



Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE APRIL 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED By:  Alan Mitchell, City Engineer 

SUBJECT:  Master Agreement with Caltrans for State‐Funded Transportation Projects 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution No. 6‐2015 Authorizing the Execution of a Master 
Agreement Administering Agency‐State Agreement for State‐Funded Projects, Agreement No. 00452S, 
and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the Agreement and all related Documents to the 
Agreement, on the City’s behalf. 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 

The City regularly applies for Federal and State funding, through PCTPA and Caltrans, for transportation 
projects.   

Recently the City received approval for State‐only Active Transportation Program (ATP) funding for the North 

Main Bike Route Improvements, Project No. ATPL‐5187(008).  This project includes design and construction of a 
bike route along N. Main St., with widening, road repair, tree trimming, re‐striping, drainage grates, bike rack, 
and barrier curb.     The project will help create a safer bicycle  route  throughout  the City of Colfax and  to  the 
Depot Transit Center. 

In order  to  receive State  funds,  the City  is  required  to enter  into a Master Agreement, which establishes  the 
general terms and conditions applicable to the City when using the funds.  The City entered into a similar Master 
Agreement  in  2004  for  Federal  funds.    The Master Agreements  relate  to  all  State  or  Federal  transportation 
funds.   With  each  project  Caltrans  prepares  a  Program  Supplement,  which  establishes  specific  terms  and 
conditions applicable to that project alone. 

Staff  requests  that City Council adopt  the Resolution  to authorize  the execution of a Master Agreement 
Administering  Agency‐State  Agreement  for  State‐funded  projects,  Agreement  No.  00452S,  and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the Agreement and all related documents to the Agreement, on 
the City’s behalf. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
1) Resolution No. 6‐2105 
2) Master Agreement Administering Agency‐State Agreement for State‐Funded projects 
3) Program Supplement No. M71 

 

ITEM 2C
1 of 23



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 6-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF A MASTER AGREEMENT, 
ADMINISTERING AGENCY-STATE AGREEMENT FOR STATE-FUNDED 
PROJECTS, AGREEMENT NO. 00452S, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT AND ALL RELATED DOCUMENTS 
TO THE AGREEMENT, ON THE CITY’S BEHALF 

Whereas, the City of Colfax regularly applies for State and Federal funding for 
transportation projects; and  

 
Whereas, the City received approval for State-only Active Transportation Program 

funding for the North Main Bike Route Improvements, Project No. ATPL-5187(008); and, 
 
Whereas, as the Administering Agency, the City is required to enter into a Master 

Agreement, Administering an Agency-State Agreement for State-Funded projects; and  
 
Whereas, the execution of said Agreement is necessary to receive the State funds.  
 
Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax:   
 

1. The City is authorized to enter into the Master Agreement, Administering Agency-State 
Agreement for State-Funded projects, Agreement No. 00452S; and 

 
2. The City Manager is authorized to execute the Agreement and all related documents 

to the Agreement, including Program Supplement No. M71. 
 

Passed and Adopted this 8th day of April, 2015 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
 
      _____________________________________ 
       Kim A Douglass, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 2C
2 of 23



ITEM 2C
3 of 23



ITEM 2C
4 of 23



ITEM 2C
5 of 23



ITEM 2C
6 of 23



ITEM 2C
7 of 23



ITEM 2C
8 of 23



ITEM 2C
9 of 23



ITEM 2C
10 of 23



ITEM 2C
11 of 23



ITEM 2C
12 of 23



ITEM 2C
13 of 23



ITEM 2C
14 of 23



ITEM 2C
15 of 23



ITEM 2C
16 of 23



ITEM 2C
17 of 23



ITEM 2C
18 of 23



ITEM 2C
19 of 23



ITEM 2C
20 of 23



ITEM 2C
21 of 23



ITEM 2C
22 of 23



ITEM 2C
23 of 23



 
 
 
 
 
 
   

FOR THE APRIL 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY:  Staff 

DATE:  March 23, 2015 
SUBJECT:  Mosquito and Vector Control Awareness Week April 19‐25, 2015 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:   FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 7‐2015 Recognizing West Nile Virus and Mosquito and 
Vector Control Awareness Week 2015 

 

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY:   
   
The City of Colfax has potential mosquito breeding habitat which  could  lead  to mosquito  caused health 
issues.    In 2014, West Nile virus resulted  in 29 human deaths  in California and over 798  individuals  in 31 
counties tested positive for the virus; and West Nile virus resulted in seven human cases of neuro‐invasive 
disease and one human death in Placer County.  The California Department of Public Health and the federal 
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention predict West Nile virus will again pose a public health threat in 
California in 2015. 
 
Adequately funded mosquito and vector control, disease surveillance and public awareness programs are 
the best way to prevent outbreaks of diseases transmitted by mosquitoes and other vectors.  As a means of 
increasing public awareness, the Placer Mosquito and Vector Control District has supported the Mosquito 
and Vector Control Association of California by designating the week of April 19 to April 25, 2015 as West 
Nile virus and Mosquito and Vector Control Awareness Week.  In addition to increasing public awareness ot 
the threat of diseases, West Nile virus and Mosquito and Vector Control Awareness Week will encourage 
the public  to  take action  in preventing mosquito and  vector‐transmitted diseases, and will highlight  the 
activities of various mosquito and vector research and control agencies working to reduce the health threat 
within  California.    Staff  recommends  that  the  City  Council  join  the  Placer  County Mosquito  and Vector 
Control  District  in  declaring  April  19‐25,  2015  as  West  Nile  Virus  and  Mosquito  and  Vector  Control 
Awareness Week. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
  Resolution 7‐2015 

ITEM 2D
1 of 2



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 7-2015 
 

RECOGNIZING WEST NILE VIRUS AND MOSQUITO AND VECTOR CONTROL 
AWARENESS WEEK 2015  

WHEREAS, the Mosquito and Vector Control Association of California has designated the 
week of April 19 to April 25, 2015 as West Nile virus and Mosquito and Vector 
Control Awareness Week; and  

 

WHEREAS, excess numbers of mosquitoes and other vectors spread diseases, reduce 
enjoyment of outdoor living spaces, reduce property values, hinder outdoor work, 
and reduce livestock productivity; and  

 

WHEREAS, West Nile virus is a mosquito-borne disease that can result in debilitating cases 
of meningitis and encephalitis and death to humans and wildlife; and  

 

WHEREAS, in 2014, West Nile virus resulted in 7 human cases of neuro-invasive disease 
and 1 human death in Placer County; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Colfax has potential mosquito breeding habitat which could lead to mosquito 
caused health issues; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Colfax supports the Placer Mosquito and Vector Control District 
efforts to reduce public health from mosquito and vector-borne diseases and 
nuisances; and 

 

WHEREAS, West Nile virus and Mosquito and Vector Control Awareness Week will 
increase the public’s awareness of the threat of diseases and encourage the public to 
take action in preventing mosquito and vector-transmitted diseases,; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Colfax hereby 
recognizes April 19 to April 25, 2015 as West Nile virus and Mosquito and Vector 
Control Awareness Week. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Colfax on the 8th day of April, 
2015 by the following vote: 

 

Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   

                      ___________________________________ 
      Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 2D
2 of 2



Page 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

FOR THE APRIL 8 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller ,City Manager 

PREPARED By:  Jim Fletter, Assistant City Engineer 

SUBJECT:  Award Construction Contract for the Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding, 
Project No. 14‐01 

 

  N/A     FUNDED   X  UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: $250,000 
FROM FUND:  Rule 20A & 
City Street Fund

 

RECOMMENDED   ACTION:   1) Adopt Resolution No. 8‐2015 Authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Construction  Contract  with  Hudson  Excavation,  Inc.  in  the  amount  of  $189,473.00  and  Approve 
Construction  Budget  of  $201,026  as  a  Contingency;  2)  Authorize  the  City  Manager  to  Enter  into 
Reimbursement Agreements with PG&E, Verizon and Wave Communication. 

 
ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
 
On March 11, 2015, through Resolution 5‐2015, Council approved the construction Plans, Specification and 
Project  Budget  Sheet  for  the  Grass  Valley  Street  Utility  Undergrounding  Project  No.  14‐01.  .Through 
partnership  with  PG&E,  Verizon  and  Wave  Communication,  the  City  will  utilize  its  Rule  20A  Utility 
Undergrounding  Fund and City  Street  Fund  to  relocate above ground electrical and  telecommunications 
facilities on Grass Valley Street between the west side of the railroad tracks and the west alley behind Main 
Street. 
 
As detailed  in the following section, Verizon and Wave Communication have promised to provide funding 
to share in the construction of the new facilities.  Staff is preparing the necessary joint trench agreements 
that  will  obligate  Verizon’s,  Wave’s  and  PG&E’s  participation.    Staff  is  recommending  that  Council 
authorized award of the project to the lowest, responsive, responsible bidder contingent upon execution of 
reimbursement agreements with PG&E, Verizon and Wave Communication.   There are no other agencies 
that will participate in this joint trench project.  Once all agreements are signed, Staff will issue a Notice to 
Proceed to the Contractor. 
 
Seven bids  for the project were received on March 26, 2015.   The bid results are  included with this staff 
report.   Hudson Excavation was  the  lowest,  responsive  and  responsible bidder.    Staff  recommends  that 
Council  adopt  the  attached  resolution  awarding  a  contract  to  Hudson  Excavation  in  the  amount  of 
$189,473  contingent  upon  completed  reimbursement  agreements  with  PG&E,  Verizon  and  Wave 
Communication. 

ITEM 2E
1 of 4



Page 2 

 

FINANCIAL AND/OR POLICY IMPLICATIONS: 
The Engineer’s base bid cost estimate was $185,000 plus $22,000 for three additive bid items that include 
the restoration of the roadway surface and construction of a new street light foundation at the southeast 
corner of Main & Grass Valley. 
 
Based  on  the  low  bidder’s  cost,  the majority  of  the  project,  including  Additive  Bid  Items  1A &  2A,  for 
restoration of the roadway concrete base and asphalt, will be paid with the Rule 20A fund and by Verizon 
and Wave.  The City’s Street Fund must pay 100% of the Additive Bid Item 3A, to remove the existing light 
pole  and  construct  a  new  light  pole  base  at  the  southeast  corner  of  the  Grass  Valley  & Main  Street 
intersection.   Staff  is recommending that Council award all of the Additive Bid Items to the contractor for 
the following reasons.  Restoration of the roadway concrete base is recommended to ensure that the road 
surface  in  the Grass Valley & Main  Street  intersection  remains uniform  and  stable with  the  rest of  the 
intersection.   While restoration of  the  trench asphalt could be completed with  the upcoming “UPRR Ped 
Xing and Bike Path Improvement Project”, a portion of the asphalt work is outside the limits of that project 
and would not be eligible  for reimbursement with  the project’s  funding.   Both of  these  two Additive Bid 
Items are adjustable  in  the contract by 100%  so  staff can make  field decisions  to eliminate  this work or 
scale it back based on findings during excavation of the trenches.  The removal of the street light could be 
eliminated from this contract and constructed with another project; however, the Contractor bid this item 
at $2,500 while the engineer’s estimate for this work was $4,000 and the bid prices ranged up to $6,000, so 
staff believes the City is well served by including this item of work in the contract. 
  
In addition to the City’s Rule 20A allocation and Street Fund, Verizon and Wave Communication will fund 
their fair share of the construction cost.  The exact amount of fair share will be calculated by PG&E but an 
estimated breakdown of  the monies  that will be used  to  fund  the construction portion of  the project  is 
provided below. 
 
City Rule 20A Fund (PG&E)  $96,522 
City Street Fund  $7,016 
Verizon  $33,063 
Wave Communication  $52,872 
Total Funding  $189,473 
 
Council approved a Construction and Contingency Budget of $115,091 at the March 11th Council Meeting.  
The Rule 20A and City Street portion of  the construction cost above,  totaling $103,538,  is  the allocation 
against that budget; with Verizon and Wave paying their portion directly.  To allow for unanticipated costs 
during construction, staff is requesting that the remaining $11,553 of the budget be used as a construction 
contingency.  Accounting for this contingency, the approved construction budget would be $201,026. 
 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
Resolution 8‐2015 
Bid Results (Bid Tabulation) 
 

ITEM 2E
2 of 4



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 8-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSTRUCTION 
CONTRACT WITH HUDSON EXCAVATION, INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF $189,473 

AND APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION BUDGET OF $201,026 

Whereas, on March 11, 2015, through Resolution 5-2015, the City Council approved 
the Plans, Specifications and Budget for the “Grass Valley Street Utility Undergrounding 
Project”, City Project 14-01; and, 
 

Whereas, on March 26, 2015, seven Bids were received, publicly opened and read; 
and, 

 
Whereas, the lowest, responsive, responsible Bid was received from Hudson 

Excavation, Inc. in the Amount of $189,473. 
 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the City 
Manager is 

1) Authorized to Execute a Construction Contract with Hudson Excavation, Inc. in 
the Amount of $189,473 with the Work to include the Base Bid items and all 
Additive Bid Items.  This Authorization is Contingent upon completed 
reimbursement Agreements with PG&E, Verizon and Wave Communication 

2) Authorized to Execute Reimbursement Agreements with PG&E, Verizon and 
Wave Communication for the joint trench Utilities. 

 
Passed and Adopted this 8th day of April by the following vote: 

 
Ayes:   
Noes:   
Absent:  
Abstain:  
 

 ___________________________________ 
      Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 2E
3 of 4



Engineer's Estimate:

Name

HUDSON EXCAVATION $189,473.00

LORANG BROTHERS CONST. $195,000.00

TENNYSON ELECTRIC $205,709.00

BRCO CONSTRUCTORS $209,430.00

HANSON BROTHERS ENTERPRISES $214,585.00

CUNNINGHAM EXCAVATING $260,754.66

ST. FRANCIS ELECTRIC NON-RESPONSIVE

Low Bidder Subcontractors (Hudson Excavation)

Contract Items 2A Folsom Lake Asphalt

Basis of Bid           $207,000

Total Base Bid + Additive

CITY OF COLFAX

GRASS VALLEY STREET ROAD REHAB PROJECT

BID TABULATION

Bid Opening:  March 26, 2015

Base Bid $185,000,   Additive $22,000

ITEM 2E
4 of 4



 

FOR THE APRIL 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:   Alfred A. “Mick” Cabral, City Attorney 
DATE:   March 31, 2015 

SUBJECT:   44 Gearhart Lane Abatement 
 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: $  FROM FUND: 
 

RECOMMENDED   ACTION:  Adopt  Resolution  9‐2015  Confirming  as  Submitted  the  Report  of  Costs  of 
Abatement for the Real Property Located at 44 Gearhart Lane, Colfax, California, Placer County Assessor’s 
Parcel Number 006–022–002–000, Authorizing the Abatement Costs to be Levied as a Special Assessment 
against said Property, and Authorizing Recordation of a Special Assessment Lien. 

 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 
On January 15, 2015, the City Manager ordered the building at 44 Gearhart Lane to be demolished in order 
to abate a public nuisance. The property owner did not voluntarily demolish the building so an Inspection 
Warrant ordering the demolition was obtained from the Placer County Superior Court on February 5, 2015. 
Hansen Brothers was hired and the building was demolished beginning March 9, 2015.  
 
The Colfax Municipal Code authorizes  the City  to  recover  its abatement costs  from  the property owner. 
The process  for doing  so  requires  the City Manager  to  render an  itemized  report  in writing  to  the City 
Council showing the cost of abatement. Before the report is submitted to the City Council, a copy must be 
posted for at least five days upon the property together with a notice of the time when the report will be 
heard by the Council for confirmation. The report and notice must also be sent to the property owner by 
certified mail. The report was posted and mailed as required so confirmation of the City Manager’s report 
is properly before the Council.  
 
If the Council confirms the City Manager’s report as requested, the charges become a special assessment 
against the property. That special assessment becomes a  lien once  it  is recorded with the Placer County 
Recorder’s Office. After the lien is recorded it can be foreclosed by judicial sale.  
 
Staff will notify  the property owner of  the amount of  the  lien and demand payment.  If payment  is not 
made within a reasonable time, staff will recommend commencing judicial foreclosure proceedings. Those 
proceedings involve the filing of a lawsuit and a request that the Court order the lien foreclosed and title 
transferred to the City. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
City Manger’s Report and Notice 
Resolution № 9‐2015 

ITEM 5A
1 of 6



ITEM 5A
2 of 6



 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 9-2015 
 

CONFIRMING AS SUBMITTED THE REPORT OF COSTS OF ABATEMENT FOR 
THE REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 44 GEARHART LANE, COLFAX, 
CALIFORNIA, PLACER COUNTY ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER 006-022-002-
000, AUTHORIZING THE ABATEMENT COSTS TO BE LEVIED AS A SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT AGAINST SAID PROPERTY, AND AUTHORIZING RECORDATION 
OF A SPECIAL ASSESSMENT LIEN 
 

 
Whereas, City of Colfax owns and maintains a sewer lift station known as Lift 

Station #2 which was built in 1988; and, 
 

 WHEREAS, the City of Colfax (“City”) undertook nuisance abatement proceedings 
against the improved real property commonly known and described as 44 Gearhart Lane, 
Colfax, California, Placer County Assessor’s Parcel #006-022-002-000 (the “Subject 
Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City incurred costs of abatement for abating the nuisance at the 
Subject Property in the amount of $20,320.57; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Colfax Municipal Code Section 8.16.180, the City 
Manager kept an account of the cost of abatement relating to the Subject Property and 
rendered an itemized report thereof to the Colfax City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council set the City Manager’s report of the costs of abatement 
of the Subject Property for hearing to determine the correctness and/or reasonableness of 
such costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Colfax Municipal Code Section 8.16.180, the City 
Manager’s report and notice of the hearing were posted upon the Subject Property and 
served by certified mail, and proof of such service was made by declaration under penalty 
of perjury filed with the City Clerk; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on April 8, 2015, the Colfax City Council conducted a public hearing after 
which it adopted its Resolution 9-2015 confirming the City Manager’s report of the costs of 
abatement of the Subject Property and imposing a lien thereupon in the amount of 
$20,320.57; and   
 

ITEM 5A
3 of 6



 

 

 WHEREAS, upon the conclusion of said hearing, the City Council found and 
determined that the City Manager’s report of the costs of abatement related to the Subject 
Property is true, correct and accurate and that the costs itemized therein are reasonable 
and should be confirmed. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct statements of fact and are incorporated 
into this Resolution by this reference. 
 

2. The City Council hereby confirms the City Manager’s report of the costs of 
abatement related to the Subject Property and finds and determines that costs of 
abatement in the amount of $20,320.57 shall be levied as a special assessment 
against the Subject Property, recorded as a lien on the Subject Property and 
collected as allowed by California Law and the Colfax Municipal Code. 

 
3. The City Manager or his designee is authorized to record a notice of lien on the 

Subject Property in the amount of $20,320.57 in substantially the form attached to 
this Resolution. 

 
 The foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting 
of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 8th day of April 2015 by the 
following vote of the Council: 
 
 AYES:    
 NOES:  
 ABSTAIN:   
 ABSENT:  
 
        _________________         ___________ 
                 Kim A Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:   
 
_______________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk  

ITEM 5A
4 of 6



RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

Alfred A. Cabral, Esq. 
Colfax City Attorney 
Pelletreau, Alderson & Cabral 
P.O. Box 1000 

' Grass Valley, California 95945 

APN: 006-022-002-000 

SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE 

NOTICE OF LIEN 

(Claim of City of Colfax) 

Pursuant to the authority vested by the provisions of Section 8.16.150 et seq., of the City of Colfax 
Municipal Code, the City Manager of the City of Colfax did on January 15, 2015 order the real property 
hereinafter described to be abated by demolishing the building thereupon in order to abate a public 
nuisance on said real property. 

Pursuant to Section 8.16.080 et seq., of the Colfax Municipal Code, the City Manager on or about March 
9, 2015, pursuant to an Inspection Warrant- Nuisance Abatement issued by the Superior Court of the 
State of California, County of Placer in Action No. 63 - 017711 caused the building on the real property 
hereinafter described to be demolished in order to abate a public nuisance on said real property. 

The City Council of the City of Colfax did on the 8th day of April, 2015 assess the cost of such abatement 
and demolition upon the said real property hereinafter described. The same has not been paid nor any 
part thereof. 

The City of Colfax does hereby claim a lien for such abatement and demolition in the amount of said 
assessment in the sum of $20,320.57 and the same shall be a lien upon said real property until the same 
has been paid in full and discharged of record. 

The real property herein mentioned and upon which a lien is claimed, is that certain parcel of land lying 
and being in the City of Colfax, County of Placer, State of California, and more particularly described as 
follows: 

A Portion of Lots 2 and 4, Block 5 additional Townsite of Colfax, as shown on the 
Map thereof Filed in the Office of the County Recorder of Placer County, said Portion being 
more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a Point on the Southerly line of a Lane (known as Gearhart 
Lane} from which Point the Easterly Line of Pleasant Street, at the Point of 
Intersection with the Southerly Line of the Lane bears North 72 degrees 41' West 
100.00 Feet, and the Southeast Corner of the Section 34, Township 15 North, Range 
9 East, M.O.B. & M., bears South 36 degrees 16'47" East 1533.59 Feet and running 

ITEM 5A
5 of 6



thence from Said Point of Beginning along the Southerly Line of the Lane South 72 
degrees 41' East 70.00 Feet; thence South 19 degrees 24' West 105.30 Feet; thence 
North 47 degrees 49' West 67. 70 Feet; thence North 13 degrees 49' East 
77.40 Feet to the Point of Beginning. 

APN: 006-022-002 · 000 

Dated this 8th day of April, 2015 

State of California 
) SS. 

County of Placer ) 

Mark Miller, City Manager 

On April 8, 2015, before me, ,Notary Public, personally appeared Mark Miller, who 
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and 
acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized capacity, and that by his signature on the instrument the 
person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument. 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is true 
and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

Signature 

Name 
(TYPED OR PRINTED) (This area for official notarial seal) 

ITEM 5A
6 of 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

FOR THE APRIL 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY:  Staff 

DATE:  April 3, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Review of Façade Mural at 38 N. Main Street Above Café Luna Restaurant 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: N/A  FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 10-2015 Approving the Proposed 
Façade Mural at 38 N. Main Street above Café Luna Restaurant  

 

BACKGROUND:   

One of Colfax’s greatest assets is the inventory of historic and architecturally interesting 
buildings in the City.  The block of North Main Street from Grass Valley Street to Depot 
Street is particularly noteworthy, and is frequently pointed out as a great resource, but an 
underutilized opportunity for the City.  The City has recently had economic development 
specialists review the downtown, and the Main Street building facades and parapets were 
pointed out as important elements that should be highlighted to provide visual interest, 
attention and business attraction to the buildings.  The building facades have a rich history of 
signage, mural wall paintings and graphics, including a train, an animal, neon business names 
and flowers.  Attached are photos showing the current appearance of the building facades, the 
appearance in the early 2000’s, and an enlarged view of a vacant 38 N. Main Street from the 
2009 Colfax Historic Downtown Master Plan document. 

The circa 1865 building at 38 N. Main had been vacant since a fire damaged the building in 
October of 2013.  The building has had a history of vacancies, but also a history of economic 
contributions including recent restaurants Madonna’s and the Kitchen Garden.  A successful 
local business, Café Luna, has just relocated to the larger space at 38 N. Main. 

ITEM 6A
1 of 7



ANALYSIS: 

New business signs for the relocated Café Luna restaurant have been approved for zoning 
compliance by the Community Services Director.  The City’s Design Guidelines also allow 
for mural signage.  Attached is the artist’s rendition of a proposed mural for the façade of the 
building.  The business name in the façade is included with, and complies with the sign 
regulations. Actual painting of the mural is being donated by local artist Foxey McCleary.   

Staff has reviewed the proposed mural and finds that:  (1) The mural will maintain the small 
town character that makes Colfax a desirable place to live; (2) The mural will maintain and 
enhance the City’s character and visual appearance in order to create a quality future 
community; and (3) The mural will maintain and enhance the historic resources, qualities and 
character of the City of Colfax.  The mural represents a business’ private initiative that will 
help enhance the downtown business environment, supporting Colfax General Plan Policy 
2.6.2.1: Encourage the location and development of businesses which generate high 
property and sales taxes, local employment and are environmentally compatible.  
Additionally, the mural supports Historic District Design Master Plan Guideline 3.4.9:  
Preservation or restoration of historic wall painting is encouraged. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the City Council receive the staff report, discuss, and as appropriate, adopt 
Resolution 10-2015 approving the proposed façade mural at 38 N. Main Street above Café 
Luna Restaurant. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
1. photo showing the current appearance of the Main Street building facades 
2. photo showing the Main Street building facades’ appearance in the early 2000’s 
3. photo showing the vacant 38 N. Main Street from the 2009 Colfax Historic Downtown Master Plan  
4. photo showing the proposed façade mural 
5. Resolution 10-2015   
 

       

 

  

ITEM 6A
2 of 7



ITEM 6A
3 of 7



ITEM 6A
4 of 7



ITEM 6A
5 of 7



ITEM 6A
6 of 7



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 10-2015 
 

APPROVING THE PROPOSED FAÇADE MURAL AT 38 N. MAIN 
STREET ABOUVE CAFÉ LUNA RESAURANT  

 
Whereas, the City Of Colfax received a request for approval of a proposed 

façade mural at 38 N. Main Street above Café Luna Restaurant; and 
 

Whereas, the mural will maintain the small town character that makes Colfax 
a desirable place to live; the mural will maintain and enhance the City’s character 
and visual appearance in order to create a quality future community; and the mural 
will maintain and enhance the historic resources, qualities and character of the City 
of Colfax; and 

 
Whereas, the mural represents a business’ private initiative that will help 

enhance the downtown business environment; and 
 

Whereas, the mural supports Colfax General Plan Policy 2.6.2.1:  Encourage 
the location and development of businesses which generate high property and sales 
taxes, local employment and are environmentally compatible.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Colfax  
that the proposed mural at 38 N. Main Street is approved. 
 

Passed and Adopted this 8th day of April, 2015, by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:      
Noes:  
Abstain: 
Absent:   
   
 

                                                                
___________________________________ 

      Kim A Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 6A
7 of 7



 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 

FOR THE APRIL 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED BY:  Staff 

DATE:  March 31, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Update on General Plan Traffic Requirements 

 

X  N/A     FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: N/A  FROM FUND:  N/A 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Receive the Staff Report on General Plan Traffic Requirements, Discuss and 
Direct Staff as Appropriate 

 

Background: 

A fundamental aspect of city planning is that the city’s policies should facilitate appropriate 

development,  and  not  just  regulate  development.    The  City’s  General  Plan,  adopted 

September  22,  1998,  is  the  core  document  that  guides  the  City  to  achieve  that  balance 

between  facilitation  and  regulation.    The  General  Plan  is  still  valid  despite  it  being 

developed  nearly  two  decades  ago.    The  economic  and  development  environments 

however, have changed dramatically since 1998. 

General  plans,  as  their  name  implies,  are  general  in  their  outlook  to  guide  growth  and 

development  of  a  city.    The  plans  establish  goals  and  policies  that  are  used  by  cities  to 

develop  zoning,  programs,  regulations,  practices  and  specific  plans  to  facilitate  actual 

development and  improvements  to a  community.   Colfax’s General Plan has broad goals, 

such as Goal 2.6.1: Promote  the orderly development of Colfax and  its  surroundings.    It 

also  has  more  specific  policies,  such  as  Policy  2.6.2.1:  Encourage  the  location  and 

development  of  businesses  which  generate  high  property  and  sales  taxes,  local 

employment and are environmentally compatible.   

ITEM 6B
1 of 6



General plans are intended to be reviewed in their entirety. No one policy may stand alone 

when reviewing projects to determine conformity or non‐conformity with the rest of the 

general plan.  Specific developments often support certain general plan policies while being 

less supportive of others.  The planning process allows the potential conflicts to be resolved 

by a city’s decision makers. 

 

Discussion: 

Recently, as economic activity has  increased,  the City Council has discussed development 

opportunities and compatibility with the General Plan.  The question of potential conflict in 

general  plan  policies  has  been  raised  and  staff,  with  the  assistance  of  consultants,  has 

reviewed  the  policies.    Policy  3.5.1.2:  Maintain  a  level  “C”  service  standard  for  City 

intersections  and  roadways,  is  a  policy  that  is  of  particular  interest  given  the  age  and 

constraints of Colfax’s road system.  This policy does not require that discretionary projects 

be rejected  if there are roadways performing at a  lower Level of Service (LOS) than C. The 

City has adopted an Impact Mitigation Program and other efforts that support this policy, as 

well as Policy 3.5.1.1: Maximize the efficient use of the existing transportation system and 

Policy 3.5.1.3: Take a pro‐active position in regional transportation issues that involve the 

Colfax area. 

There  are  actions  that  the  City  should  take  to  advance  the  policies  in  the General  Plan.  

Most timely would be to update the  Impact Mitigation Program and Capital  Improvement 

Program.  Staff will be making recommendations for funding those program updates in the 

budget process beginning  in May.   As resources allow, review of and potential updates to 

the General Plan and Zoning Code should be considered.  Recent California law is requiring 

additional methodology  to  the  Level of  Service metric  for  traffic analysis,  so  the City will 

need to adjust some policies in compliance.  State law does allow General Plan updates up 

to four times per year, so the work could be done incrementally as funding is available.  The 

attached memorandum  provides  a more  detailed  technical  analysis  of  the  General  Plan 

circulation element and land use element policies. Staff will bring recommendations for any 

updates to City Council for consideration. 

 
 
ATTACHMENT:  Parilo & Associates 2/18/2015 Draft Memo  

ITEM 6B
2 of 6



 

 
Land Use Planning & Environmental Consulting Services 

          Thomas A. Parilo & Associates 
          10320 Tillicum Way 

          Nevada City, CA 95959 
          530-265-6393 

          E-mail:  taparilo@sbcglobal.net 
 

 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
Date:  February 18, 2015 
 
To:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

City of Colfax 
 
From:   Tom Parilo 
 
Overview 
You have requested an opinion regarding the City of Colfax General plan Circulation Element Policy 
3.5.1.2 which states “Maintain a level of service ‘C’ standard for City intersections and roadways.”  You 
have asked that an analysis be provided to assist the City Council on how it may uniformly interpret 
and/or apply this single policy when reviewing projects for conformity with the 2020 General Plan.  One 
of your concerns is whether this policy is or should be viewed as an absolute threshold for determining 
whether discretionary projects may proceed in the face of existing roadways and/or intersections that are 
performing at lower levels of service.   
 
The short answer is that, by itself, the policy does not require that discretionary projects be rejected if 
there are impacted roadways and/or intersections performing at a lower Level of Service (LOS) than C.  
The policy does implicitly require that the city have a program in place to bring any deficient roadways or 
intersections up to a LOS C or better.   
 
Analysis 
General Plans in California are intended to be reviewed in their entirety. No one policy may stand alone 
when reviewing projects to determine conformity or non-conformity with the rest of the general plan.  
Having stated that, a brief overview of the policy framework of general plans is in order.  There are 
generally two types of policies used in general plans. The first provides guidance to City decision makers 
and the second sets standards or thresholds.  Policy 3.5.1.2 includes both types.  Most polices also require 
an implementation program to carry out the intended purpose.   
 
Goal 3.5.1 of the Circulation Element also needs to be considered to see how Policy 3.5.1.2 is integrated 
into the overall direction.  Goal 3.5.1 states “Create a problem free and safe transportation system in 
Colfax Planning Area.”  There are four specific policies and two Implementation Measures listed under 
this goal.  In summary, they include: 
 
Policies 

Policy 3.5.1.1 Maximize the efficient use of the existing transportation system. 
Policy 3.5.1.2 Maintain a level of service ‘C’ standard for City intersections and roadways.  
Policy 3.5.1.3 Take a pro-active position in regional transportation issues… 
Policy 3.5.1.4 Traffic impacts must be considered in land use decisions… 

ITEM 6B
3 of 6



Road LOS Policy  
February 18, 2015 
P a g e  | 2 
 

Land Use Planning & Environmental Consulting Services 

 
 

Implementation Measures 
3.5.1A Monitor standards and requirements for future development…noting and 

prioritizing improvements such as streets…These needed improvements will be 
included in the City’s Capital Improvement Program. 

3.5.1B Land uses that generate a high incidence of auto traffic, such as drive-ins, 
convenience stores, fast food outlets, shopping centers and large subdivisions 
shall submit a site specific traffic report…  

 
Implementation Measure 3.5.1A provides a partial program to address how the city will maintain LOS C 
on its roadways and intersections.  It requires that a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) be developed and 
adopted.   The other side of that equation is the identification of a funding source for how the city will 
implement the CIP. The city’s traffic mitigation fee program was most recently updated in 2006. 
Mitigation fee programs are limited in that they can only pay for the impacts of new development. Other 
funds need to be identified that will cover system deficiencies.  Typically, these sources include regional 
transportation agency (Placer County Regional Transportation Agency, state, federal and local funds. 
 
Expanding beyond the Circulation Element, the rest of the general plan needs to be evaluated and 
considered as part of a more comprehensive approach toward development in the city.  Section 1.6 of the 
General Plan Introduction sets the tone and direction for the entire general plan.  The overall goals and 
objectives are set forth in the introduction. Following are the key statements about the general plan 
direction: 
 

1. Maintain and attract employment (Economic Element ) 
2. Ensure new development is self supporting, high quality and compatible with the city 

(Community Design Element) 
3. Provide a safe and efficient circulation system and maintain acceptable levels of service 

(Circulation Element) 
 
Section 2.4 of the Land Use Element identifies a number of relevant city issues needed to implement the 
general plan.  They include items such as updating and expanding the various development fee schedules.  
Along these lines, Implementation Measures 2.6.2B requires that the CIP be updated and presumably kept 
current with changing needs. In addition, Implementation Measure 2.6.2D requires that new development 
pay it’s pro rata share associated with the costs of infrastructure needed to support development and 
maintain an overall quality of life in Colfax.   
 
Section 8.1 of the Economic Development Element strives to accomplish an improved economic business 
climate which recognizes constraints and opportunities, expansion of the local tax base and enhanced 
employment opportunities.  It further states that the City of Colfax has the opportunity to strategically 
plan for its role in a regional economy.  It further supports positive economic growth for a full range of 
local employment, a more diversified local economy, greater capture of tourism and increased sales tax.  
Section 8.2 further states that the city’s commitment to economic development is strong. Economic 
development is the engine whereby sales tax and property tax will grow and that the city’s continual 
attraction to development will help ensure that plans become a reality.   
 
Finally, the Economic Development Element identifies a number of issues that need to be addressed in 
order to promote economic development activity. These issues include, but are not limited to the 
following: 
 

 Does Colfax make the permit process for development easy and painless? 

ITEM 6B
4 of 6



Road LOS Policy  
February 18, 2015 
P a g e  | 3 
 

Land Use Planning & Environmental Consulting Services 

 Is Colfax an inviting place for business?  Related to that question, is there adequate infrastructure 
(water, sewer, roads, etc) and public services (police and fire protection, etc.)   

 
Traffic LOS on city roads 
The most recent traffic study that examines level of service on City roads was prepared for the Maidu 
Village project by K.D. Anderson and Associates, in December 2013.  That study indicated that there are 
three intersections that currently exceed LOS C within the City of Colfax (Attachment 1). These 
intersection include S. Auburn Street/Central Street (a.m. and p.m. peak hour), S. Auburn Street/SR 174 
Overcrossing (a.m. peak) and S. Auburn Street, WB I-80 ramps (a.m. peak).  Under cumulative buildout 
conditions to the year 2032, (including Maidu Village) there are an additional four intersections that will 
degrade to LOS D or F in the a.m. or p.m. peak hours without mitigation (Attachment 2).   
 
Circulation System Improvements 
There are currently three intersections that are operating below LOS C that will require improvements in 
accordance with Policy 3.5.1.2.  As noted in Table 12, below, these intersections are S. Auburn Street / 
Central Street, S. Auburn Street / SR 174 Overcrossing and S. Auburn Street / WB I-80 ramps. The 
General Plan notes that signalization of these intersections or other acceptable traffic management 
methods will be needed to improve the locations to LOS C conditions.  As noted, the current City fee 
program collects funds towards these three locations.  Attachments 1 (Existing LOS) and 2 (2032 LOS) 
further demonstrate the changes in LOS and how LOS C can impact the type of improvements needed at 
various intersections.    

 
TABLE 12  

TRAFFIC MITIGATION FEE PROGRAM IMPROVEMENTS 
Intersection  Description  Cost  

($1,000’s)  
S. Auburn Street / Central 
Street  

Signalization, lane 
improvements and striping  

$600.00  

S. Auburn Street / SR 174 
Overcrossing  

Signalization, lane 
improvements and striping  

$400.50  

S. Auburn Street / WB I-80 
ramps  

Signalization, lane 
improvements and striping  

$420.00  

Source: Colfax Mitigation Fee Study, Table R1 Major Infrastructure Roads, 7/10/2006  
 
Generally both current and future impacted intersections within the City are effected by factors beyond 
the City’s control.  These factors include the at-grade downtown railroad crossing, the west bound I-80 on 
and off-ramps at S. Auburn Street and the Hwy 174 over grade railroad crossing.  These realities may lead 
to reconsideration of LOS C as the City’s standard for acceptable traffic impacts in future reviews of the 
General Plan.  In the meantime, the traffic mitigation fee program recommends and is collecting funds for 
signalization and lane/striping improvements for these various impacted intersections.  There are no 
recommended improvements or mitigation fees for the other impacted intersections (Attachment 2)   
 
Conclusions 

1. Economic development is the engine that will generate employment, increase tourism while 
promoting growth in sales and property tax. 

2. All forms of development are required to contribute their fair share costs to cumulative 
infrastructure expansion.  

3. The City’s traffic impact fee schedule only addresses three intersections that are currently 
exceeding LOS C (Table 12, from Maidu Village, above).  

ITEM 6B
5 of 6



Road LOS Policy  
February 18, 2015 
P a g e  | 4 
 

Land Use Planning & Environmental Consulting Services 

a. The City has little control over the factors that contribute to the lower levels of service at 
these three intersections. 

4. A comprehensive traffic study has not been commissioned by the City to evaluate long term 
general plan level traffic impacts.   

5. Under cumulative buildout conditions (2032), the Maidu Village traffic study identified a total of 
seven intersections that will exceed LOS C during either a.m. and/or p.m. peak hours. 

6. The City’s traffic impact fee program currently does not collect fees to off-set the cumulative 
impacts at the additional impacted intersections. 

7. Failure to address either LOS and/or future funding for improving impacted intersections under 
buildout conditions could affect quality of life and the City’s ability to attract economic 
development. 

 
Recommendations 

1. In the short term, since the city has an adopted mitigation fee program addressing LOS C 
improvements at the three currently impacted intersections, the city could find that it has a 
program to implement Policy 3.5.1.2 and Implementation Measure 3.5.1A of the 2020 General 
Plan. 

2. The City should embark on a program to minimally update the Circulation and Land Use 
Elements to comprehensively evaluate future (normally 20 years) traffic impacts along with 
recommended improvement levels based on the desired LOS.  Such a comprehensive update 
could consider the possible reduction in LOS (to D or lower) at the three existing impacted 
intersections, examine future traffic impacts to the year 2035 and beyond and/or other programs 
to reduce the impact of new traffic on city intersections.  Any such update would require a 
concurrent review of the needed intersection improvements through the CIP and funding sources, 
including an updated mitigation fee program.  Any such amendment to the General Plan would be 
subject to review under the provisions of the California Environmental Quality Act.   

3. Examine the City’s’ land use review process to provide permit streamlining where possible while 
accommodating city development standards along with design review.   

 

ITEM 6B
6 of 6



 
 
 
 
 
 
   

FOR THE April 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY:  Staff 

DATE:  March 16th, 2015 
SUBJECT:  Approval of Lift Station #2 Pump Upgrade  

 

  N/A   X  FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT: $23,612.96  FROM FUND:  561 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution 11‐2015 Authorizing the City Manager to Purchase two new 
Lift Station Pumps in the Amount of $17,112.96 and have them Installed for an Amount not to Exceed $6,500.

 
SUMMARY: 
 
The City owns and maintains  four  sewer  lift  stations.   Lift  station #2 has  the most difficult  task of all  the  lift 
stations, pushing sewage 144’ uphill.  It was built in 1988, using two pumps run in series to accomplish the task.  
These pumps continue to fail, are costly to fix, and costly to remove and install as they are 20 feet underground 
in a confined space.  Several respectable pump companies have analyzed the lift station’s design and found it to 
be  prone  to  pump  damage.    The  pumps  are  being  run  significantly  out  of  their  design  curve,  causing  a 
substantial amount of lateral force on the motor shaft, which eventually breaks.  The pumps themselves are also 
of a poor design, lacking a stabilizing bearing on the impeller end. 
 
These pumps are no longer manufactured and some critical replacement parts do not exist.  The original motors 
were custom‐made just for this application and are no longer produced.  Staff has designed and commissioned 
new parts  to  retrofit  the pumps, but  the pumps continue  to  fail due  to poor design of  the  system and poor 
design of the pumps.  
 
Recently two of four pumps have failed at  lift station #2.   Staff can continue to repair these pumps, however, 
catastrophic failure of the current pump design has the potential to result in a far more expensive situation by 
causing damage to other equipment, as well as the costs associated with a sewage spill and continuous sewage 
pumping and haul‐off.  Knowing the problem is in the design, staff believes it is in the City’s best financial and 
operational  interest  to  upgrade  these  pump  systems  to  current, manufacturer‐supported models  that  are 
designed to handle the heavy load without failing.   
 
Staff proposes to upgrade all the pumps at lift station #2, a total of four, in a two‐phase project.  Phase 1 would 
consist of replacing both broken pumps on circuit #1, leaving the pumps in circuit #2 in place to pump while the 
work  is  being  performed.    Phase  2 would  consist  of  upgrading  the  (currently  running)  pumps  in  circuit  #2, 
potentially when one of those pumps fails in the future.  Phase 2 could be pushed out to the next fiscal year if 
monetary resources prohibit the purchase. 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 6C
1 of 4



Staff has acquired four bids for the equipment for this project.  The lowest bid is from Flo‐Line Technology, Inc. 
out  of  Auburn,  in  the  amount  of  $17,112.96  for  two  ABS‐brand  pumps  and  the  associated  hardware.  
Installation  is estimated  to cost no more  than $2,500, and pipe modifications are estimated  to cost no more 
than  $4,000.    The  total  cost  for  Phase  1  will  not  exceed  $23,612.96,  and  could  be  less  if  custom  piping 
modifications are minimal or not necessary. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends that Council authorize the City Manage to purchase two new lift station pumps in the amount 
of $17,112.96, and have them completely installed for an additional amount not to exceed $6,500. 
 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

a. Resolution 11‐2015 
b. Quote from Flo‐Line Technology, Inc. 

ITEM 6C
2 of 4



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 11-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO PURCHASE TWO NEW LIFT STATION 
PUMPS IN THE AMOUNT OF $17,112.96 AND HAVE THEM INSTALLED FOR 

AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $6,500 

 
Whereas, City of Colfax owns and maintains a sewer lift station known as Lift 

Station #2 which was built in 1988; and, 
 

Whereas, the pumps at Lift Station #2 repeatedly fail due to a design sign flaw; and 
 
Whereas, the City has determined that it is in the best financial and operational 

interest of the City to replace two pumps; and, 
 

Whereas, The City has obtained four bids for the equipment; and,  
 
Whereas, Flo-Line Technology has returned the lowest bid; 

 
Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the City 

Manager is hereby authorized to purchase two new lift station pumps in the amount of 
$17,112.96 and have them installed for an amount not to exceed $6,500. 
 

Passed and Adopted this 8th day of April by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:    
Noes:    
Absent:   
Abstain:   

  
                                                                

___________________________________ 
      Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 6C
3 of 4



ATTENTION

COMPANY

EMAIL

PHONE

FAX

CELL

QUOTE NO

DATE

LEAD TIME

FREIGHT

SHIP VIA

TERMS

VALIDITY

Qty Part No Unit Price Ext'd 

2 $8,556.48 $17,112.96

1 RESTOCKING FEE $4,900.00 $4,900.00

Total $22,012.96

CITY OF COLFAX

(FORMAL PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED TO BEGIN ORDER

PROCESS) 

AND PUMP STANDS.

WITH A GLYCOL COOLING JACKET FOR DRY PIT INSTALL,

IS CANCELLED.  

EXPLOSION PROOF MOTOR.  EACH PUMP IS PROVIDED 

PLEASE NOTE: PIPING MODIFICATIONS MAY BE REQUIRED

CAST IRON CONSTRUCTION WITH CONTRABLOCK STYLE

 

03/18/15

4" SUCTION ELBOW WITH CLEANOUT, SST HARDWARE,

Description

ABS XFP 101G CB1 PE185/2 DRY PIT NON-CLOG PUMP

Chris Williams

IMPELLER; 25 HP, 3550 RPM, 460/3/60 PREMIUM EFFICIENT

                            
                                    
                                                

530-346-2313

530-346-6214

TRAVIS BERRY

8132 R3

travis.berry@colfax-ca.gov

THANK YOU VERY MUCH FOR THE OPPORTUNITY TO QUOTE THE ABOVE PRODUCTS

STOCK TO 4 WEEKS

530-887-2240 PP&ADD

BEST WAY

NET 30 O.A.C.

30 DAYS

PREPARED BY

DUE AND PAYABLE IF PUMP AND EQUIPMENT ORDER

RESTOCKING FEE - BASED UPON PUMPS AND EQUIPMENT

NOTED ABOVE TO BE PLACED ON ORDER.  FEE ONLY

CELL

chris@flolinepumps.com

REFERENCE

E-MAIL

SUBJECT ABS PUMP QUOTE

REPLACING PACO KPV

Flo-Line Technology, Inc.
11822 Kemper Rd, Auburn, CA 95603
Ph 530-887-2240, Fax 530-887-2243

Toll Free 800-255-2933
www.flolinepumps.com

ITEM 6C
4 of 4



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOR THE APRIL 8, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM:  Mark Miller, City Manager 

PREPARED By:  Jim Fletter, Assistant City Engineer 

SUBJECT:  Consultant Services Agreement with TLA Engineering & Planning (TLA) for the North 
Main Bike Route Improvement Project 

 

  N/A   X  FUNDED     UN‐FUNDED  AMOUNT:  $12,900  FROM FUND:  ATP 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Adopt Resolution No. 12‐2015 Authorizing the Execution of a Consultant 
Services Agreement in the Amount of $12,900 with TLA Engineering and Planning for the North Main 
Bike Route Improvement Project. 

ISSUE STATEMENT AND DISCUSSION: 

The City recently received approval for Active Transportation Program (ATP) funding for the North Main Bike 
Route Improvements, Project No. ATPL‐5187(008).  This project includes design and construction of a bike route 
along N. Main St., with widening, road repair, tree trimming, re‐striping, drainage grates, bike rack, and barrier 
curb.     This project was originally prepared and designed by TLA around 2008.   The plans are nearly complete 
and Staff is recommending that City Council authorize the City Manager to enter into an agreement with TLA to 
complete the design and prepare technical specifications and an engineer’s estimate of probable costs.   In the 
attached project scope and cost proposal prepared by TLA, the cost to prepare these  items of work  is fixed at 
$12,900.  TLA has proposed additional services, such as bidding and construction support on a time and material 
basis.  At this time, Staff does not anticipate that these additional services will be needed but, if they are, then 
Staff will request additional approvals and budget from Council. 

Because  the designs were near completion by TLA around 2008,  the City Engineer cannot complete  the plans 
and  specification  at  a  lower  cost  than  TLA  proposes  and  the  City  Engineer  does  not  believe  other  qualified 
engineer firms will provide a lower cost proposal, for the same reason. 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
1) Resolution No. 12‐2105 
2) TLA Proposal 

ITEM 6D
1 of 7



City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № 12-2015 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSULTANT SERVICES 
AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $12,900 WITH TLA ENGINEERING AND 

PLANNING, INC AND PLANNING FOR THE NORTH MAIN BIKE ROUTE 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

Whereas, the City has funding through the State Active Transportation Program to 
prepare plans and specifications for the North Main Bike Path Improvement, Project No. 
ATPL-5187(008); and, 

 

Whereas, the plans for said Project were nearly completed by TLA Engineering and 
Planning (TLA) in prior years; and  

 

Whereas, TLA submitted a proposal to complete the plans, prepare specifications, an 
opinion of probable costs, and recorded drawings for a fixed fee amount of $12,900; and, 

 

Whereas, the City believes continuing with the original engineers is the most cost 
effective approach.  

 

Now Therefore, Be It Resolved by the City Council of the City of Colfax that the City 
Manager is authorized to execute a Consultant Services Agreement on behalf of the City 
with TLA Engineering and Planning, Inc. for an amount not-to-exceed $12,900. 

 

Passed and Adopted this 8th day of April, 2015 by the following vote: 
 

 
AYES:    
NOES:    
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
  
 
       _____________________________________ 
       Kim A. Douglass, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk 

ITEM 6D
2 of 7



North Main Street Bike Route March 12, 2015 
Scope of Service – TLA Project #1562.20 Page 1 of 5 
 

N:\1proj\15XX\1562\Contracts\1562.20\2015-03-10 Scope - N Main Bike Route.docx 

 
UNDERSTANDING OF THE PROJECT 
This Scope defines the professional civil engineering services TLA Engineering and Planning, Inc. 
(Consultant) will provide for City of Colfax (Client). This Scope defines the Consultant’s effort 
necessary to prepare the items listed herein and to inform the Client as to some of the additional 
consultants and other items necessary for plan approval and project construction.  
 
The North Main Street Bike Route (Project) is a proposed street widening and repair project to 
improve the bike route between SR 174 and Depot way in the City of Colfax.  The design of the 
project originally started in 2005, and was put on hold in 2006 (2006 plans).  The City now wishes 
to reissue the plans and put the project out to bid. 
 
The TLA engineers that worked on the project in 2005 and 2006 are no longer with TLA.  The 
current TLA engineers will have to learn about the project in order to complete the design and 
prepare the construction plans.  
 
 
PROJECT OBJECTIVES 
Client desires Consultant to provide professional civil engineering services to design the 
improvements and to prepare the civil engineering construction documents, specifications and 
Opinion of Probable Construction Costs (OPCC), and to provide support services during 
construction of the improvements.  
 
The 2006 plans show the thickness of a structural section (asphalt concrete surface over an 
aggregate base) and various lengths and widths of areas of existing streets that are to be removed 
and replaced with a new structural section.  TLA has no record of how the thickness of the 
structural section was determine or the lengths and widths of area to repair.  TLA recommends the 
City hire a geotechnical engineer to recommend the structural section thickness, and, in 
conjunction with the City Engineer, determine the lengths and widths of the areas to repair.  The 
City may choose to use the thickness of the structural sections and the lengths and widths of areas 
to repair as shown on the 2006 plans, in which case TLA assumes no liability for the satisfactory 
performance of the completed work or if the completed work meets the City’s design objective. 
 
  

ITEM 6D
3 of 7



North Main Street Bike Route March 12, 2015 
Scope of Service – TLA Project #1562.20 Page 2 of 5 
 

N:\1proj\15XX\1562\Contracts\1562.20\2015-03-10 Scope - N Main Bike Route.docx 

SCOPE OF SERVICE 
Task 1  Improvement Plans 
Consultant will either use the 2006 plans as noted above, or perform a new design based on a 
geotechnical engineer and prepare the engineering improvement plans for the Project in 
accordance with the design current city standards. The improvement plans will be prepared in 
sufficient detail to inform the contractor how to construct the project’s improvements: grading, 
paving, curb, gutter, walkways, and storm drainage facilities.  In either way the City chooses, the 
plans will be sustainably the same as the plans prepared in 2006. 
 
It is anticipated that the improvement plans will contain the following sheets: 

 Title Sheet 
 Notes Sheet 
 Typical Sections and Detail Sheets 
 Road Plan and Profile 
 Striping Plan 
 Erosion and Sediment Control Plan 

 
Consultant will submit the engineering improvement plans to the City of Colfax for compliance 
with their standards. Consultant will provide plan sets to the Client for coordination with other 
agencies. 
 
Consultant anticipates the need for one team kick-off meeting at the site to verify the extent of 
work shown on 2006 plans set will meet the City’s objective. 
 
Unless Client provides a different paving recommendation, the pavement sections shown on the 
2006 plans will be utilized.  Consultant is not responsible for determining the paving section. This 
scope assumes Consultant will utilize existing boundary, easement, and topographic mapping used 
in the preparation of the 2006 plans.  Consultant is not aware of any changes since the originally 
mapping and surveying was completed.  Additional, utility locating, potholing, and additional 
mapping may be needed to complete the Project.  Services such as these will require an Extra 
Service Agreement (ESA).  
 

 
  
 
Task 2  Specifications and Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
Consultant will prepare the Technical Specification for the work and materials contained within 
the Improvement Plans.  Consultant will provide these to the Client to be included with their 
Standard Specification to be issued with the Improvement Plans.  Client will prepare the Special 
Provisions and other Bid Documents. 
 

Task 1: Deliverables 
 Approved Civil Improvement Plans 
 Geotechnical Engineer’s pavement recommendations, or will choose to use the 

structural section and lengths and widths of areas to repair as shown on the 2006 
plans. 

 Potholing and locating (horizontal and vertical) existing utilities and points of 
connection

ITEM 6D
4 of 7



North Main Street Bike Route March 12, 2015 
Scope of Service – TLA Project #1562.20 Page 3 of 5 
 

N:\1proj\15XX\1562\Contracts\1562.20\2015-03-10 Scope - N Main Bike Route.docx 

Consultant will prepare a quantities list and an Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) in 
a format provided by the Client to be utilized for cost estimates and bidding. 
 

 
 
 
Task 3  Record Drawings 
At the end of site construction, Consultant shall prepare record drawings reflecting changes made 
during construction. Client's contractor will be required to provide to Consultant red-line drawings 
showing all changes made by contractor for Consultant's use in preparing the record drawings.  
The record drawings are, in part, based upon unverified representations of actual construction 
information provided by the contractor.  Therefore, the Consultant cannot and does not warrant 
their accuracy. 
 

 
 
 
Task 4  Construction Support Services 
The City will provide construction observation and contract administration during all construction. 
 
The Consultant shall visit the construction site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction 
in order to observe the progress and quality of the work completed by the contractor(s) and to 
observe that the plans and specifications represent the actual field conditions.  Such visits and 
observation are not intended to be an exhaustive check or a detailed observation of the contractor’s 
work, but rather are to allow the Consultant to become generally familiar with the work in progress 
and to determine, in general, if the work is proceeding in accordance with the intent of the plans 
and specifications. 
 
Based on this general observation, Consultant shall keep the Client informed about the progress of 
the work and shall endeavor to guard the Client against deficiencies in the work.  If the Client 
desires a more extensive project observation or full-time project representation, the Client shall 
request that Consultant provide such services as Additional Services in accordance with the terms 
of the contract.  
 
The Consultant shall not supervise, direct or have control over the contractor’s work nor have any 
responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures selected 

Task 2: Deliverables 
 Technical Specifications for work and materials contained in the improvement plans 
 Quantities list 
 Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (OPCC) 

Client Provided Items 
 Format for specification 
 City standard specifications 

Task 6: Deliverables 
 Record Drawings 

Client Provided Items 
 All red-lined changes to the plans made by Client’s contractors and design team 

other than Consultant 

ITEM 6D
5 of 7



North Main Street Bike Route March 12, 2015 
Scope of Service – TLA Project #1562.20 Page 4 of 5 
 

N:\1proj\15XX\1562\Contracts\1562.20\2015-03-10 Scope - N Main Bike Route.docx 

by the contractor nor for the contractor’s safety precautions or programs in connection with the 
work.  These rights and responsibilities are solely those of the contractor.  The Consultant shall 
not be responsible for any acts or omissions of the contractor, subcontractor, and any entity 
performing any portions of the work, or any agents or employees of any of them.  The Consultant 
does not guarantee the performance of the contractor and shall not be responsible for the 
Contractor’s failure to perform its work in accordance with the Consultant’s scope of service and 
contract documents or any applicable laws, codes, rules or regulations.  
 
 
Task 5  Bidding Support 
Consultant can provide professional services to support the bidding process.  These services may 
include, but not limited to, modified quantity sheets, review of bids, respond to request for 
information, and attending pre-bid or opening bid meetings. 
 
 
Task 6  Client Requested Services 
Consultant can provide professional services, as requested, to support Client’s efforts in processing 
timely and cost effective solutions to various project approval stages.  Services which could be 
provided include items that may or may not be directly related to the preparation of the 
improvement plans such as, but not limited to:  bidding assistance, value engineering and 
exploration of alternative engineering solutions, supporting Client’s or other project consultants, 
additional opinion of probable costs, preparation of various supporting exhibits, processing of 
infrastructure security issues and agreements, etc. 
 
 
EXCLUDED SERVICES 
Client acknowledges that other services outside the Consultant’s Scope of Service may be 
necessary to have a successful project.  Some items will be provided by others (such as the City) 
and are include in the Client to Provide section, while other may or may not be needed at all, but 
are listed here to make the Client aware of them.  Some of the excluded items are, but not be 
limited to providing, the following items: 
 

 Soils reports and geotechnical services; 
 Surveying, staking, and mapping services not specifically addressed in the Scope of 

Service; 
 SWPPP; 
 Right of way acquisition, rights of entry, or construction easements; 
 Encroachment permits form Caltrans of the Rail Road; 

 
Upon Clients request, Consultant will provide an ESA for any of the above listed items. 
 
CLIENT TO PROVIDE 
Client will provide, but not be limited to providing, the following items to the Consultant for 
purposes of preparing, submitting and processing the improvement plans: 

1. Obtain and pay all necessary permit and inspection fees; 
2. Special Provisions for the Specification; 
3. Bid packages; 

ITEM 6D
6 of 7



North Main Street Bike Route March 12, 2015 
Scope of Service – TLA Project #1562.20 Page 5 of 5 
 

N:\1proj\15XX\1562\Contracts\1562.20\2015-03-10 Scope - N Main Bike Route.docx 

4. Encroachment Permits; 
5. Right of way acquisitions; 
6. Submittal to regulatory agencies and utility companies unless specified in the attached 

scope of services.   
 
STANDARD OF CARE 
Consultant will provide the engineering service in a manner consistent with the level of care and 
skill ordinarily exercised by members of the profession currently practicing in the same locality 
under similar conditions.   
 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
Cost for direct expenses related to photocopies, blueprints, reproductions, mailing, and mileage 
incurred during project representation will be billed on a reimbursable basis.  These costs are not 
reflected in the attached budget and will be billed separately from the previously identified tasks 
in conjunction with monthly invoices (direct expense plus 15%). 
 
COMPENSATION 
The Client shall pay the Consultant for Scope of Service Tasks 1 through 3 on a Fixed Fee basis 
in the amounts listed in the summary below.  Client shall pay Consultant for Scope of Service 
Tasks 4, 5, and 6 on a Time and Materials (T&M) basis, in accordance with our standard rate 
schedule (copy attached).  If additional budget is needed to complete these tasks, Consultant will 
notify Client and obtain authorization prior to exceeding the N.T.E. amounts. 
 
Consultant will invoice the Client each month for the estimated amount of service the Consultant 
provided the previous month.  Client will pay the Consultant within thirty (30) days of the date of 
the invoice. 

 
BUDGET SUMMARY 

Task Description Budget Terms 
Task 1 Improvement Plans $ 9,500 Fixed Fee 
Task 2 Specifications and OPCC $ 3,100 Fixed Fee 
Task 3 Record Drawings $ 3,00 Fixed Fee 
Task 4 Construction Support Services T&M  Estimated budget range 

$5,000 to $9,000 
Task 5 Bidding Support T&M T&M as requested 
Task 6 Client Requested Services T&M  T&M as requested 

 
The above budget summary is based upon using the 2006 plans, the current site conditions as of 
the date of this scope of services, the preliminary reports and studies associated with the project, 
and other assumptions stated within this scope.  If the City hires a geotechnical engineer to design 
a new structural section or the City changes the lengths or widths of the project and or the 
assumptions change, the Consultant and Client shall mutually agree to compensation adjustments.  
 

ITEM 6D
7 of 7


	00A Agenda 4-8-2015
	02A Minutes 3-11-15
	02B Cash Summary for February
	2015-08 Staff Report Cash Summary Feb 2015
	February Cash Summary Data

	02C Master Agreement for Caltrans
	Staff Rpt State Funding Master Agreement 3 25 15
	Resolution 6-2015 State Funding Master Agreement Caltrans
	150408 Caltrans Master Agreement
	Program Supplement M71

	02D Mosquito Control Week
	150408 Staff Report Mosquito Awareness Week
	Resolution 7-2015 Mosquito Abatement Week

	02E Award Under Ground Utilities Contract Hudson
	Staff Rpt Hudson Award 4-8-15
	Resolution 8-2015 Award 20A Utilities Undergrounding
	Bid Tabulation

	05A Abatement Costs and Lien 44 Gearhart
	150408 Staff Report Abatement - Lien 44 Gearhart
	150401City Manager's Report 44 Gearhart Hearing
	Resolution 9-2015 Confirming Abatement Costs - 44 Gearhart
	150401gh_Lien

	06A Cafe Luna Mural
	2015-04-08 Staff Report Cafe Luna Mural
	Photos of Main Street
	Res 10-2015 Luna Mural

	06B General Plan Traffic Requirements
	2015-04-08 GP recommendations
	2015-02-18 DRAFT LOS memo

	06C Purchase Pumps Lift Station 2
	150330 Staff Report Lift Station 2 - New Pumps
	Resolution _-2015 Purchase and install pumps for lift station 2
	Flo-Line Quote 8132 R3 - LS2 Pump Upgrade

	06D Engineering for N Main St Bike Route
	Staff Rpt TLA CSA 3 25 15
	Resolution TLA CSA
	2015-03-10 Scope - N Main Bike Route




